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          1  DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We are meeting

          3  today at the City Council in connection with the

          4  Fiscal 2000 budget plan announced by the Mayor, my

          5  name is Ken Fisher, the Chair of the Youth Services

          6  Committee, and this portion of the hearing is being

          7  done jointly with the Subcommittee on Juvenile

          8  Justice, chaired by Council Member Annette Robinson.

          9                 Previously we heard from the

         10  Department of Youth Services regarding programs that

         11  offer safe and healthy alternatives to tens of

         12  thousands of young people, unfortunately and rather

         13  dramatically we fail to reach all of the young

         14  people in New York, and some of them wind up in the

         15  custody of the Department of Juvenile Justice.

         16                 This portion of the hearing deals

         17  specifically with those young people and the DJJ

         18  budget, and without further ado, let me turn to the

         19  Commissioner and ask you to identify yourself for

         20  the members of your team that are with you and to

         21  proceed with your testimony.

         22                 On, I am sorry, I beg your pardon,

         23  before you do that, Council Member Robinson has

         24  asked to be recognized.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you
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          2  very much, and good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen

          3  and welcome to today's joint hearing of the Finance

          4  Committee and the Committee on Youth Services, and

          5  the Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice.

          6                 Today we will discuss the Mayor's

          7  Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2000 for the

          8  Department of Youth and Community Development and

          9  the Department of Juvenile Justice. As the

         10  Chairperson on Juvenile Justice, I am actively

         11  involved in all matters pertaining to Juvenile

         12  Justice which includes keeping a watchful eye over

         13  New York City's juvenile detention centers. In

         14  scrutinizing the budget, I am concerned about the

         15  plans to reopen the Spofford facility. We recently

         16  held a hearing in the Bronx where we heard the

         17  people of the Bronx voice their opposition to this

         18  plan. We heard of plans within the Administration

         19  considering building a new secure detention

         20  facility.  At a time when we are experiencing a

         21  decline in all the crimes, the population at the

         22  secure juvenile facilities is rising.

         23                 There is no reason for this. What

         24  this City needs is more non-secure detention

         25  facilities, and a serious budgetary commitment to
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          2  put more resources into programs that will prevent

          3  children from getting into trouble. We need more

          4  money for preventative programs and alternatives to

          5  detention programs.

          6                 The Administration budget calls for

          7  over $19 million in youth service cuts, yet they

          8  propose to spend $7 million to improve Spofford.

          9                 This tells our children that we do

         10  not care about them. This is not the message that we

         11  want to send to our children. New York City's young

         12  people are the most valuable natural resources of

         13  the City and they need to be nurtured, taught and

         14  protected, especially when they have made mistakes

         15  in their young lives.

         16                 Now, I would like to have you,

         17  Commissioner, introduce yourself, and introduce

         18  those that will be participating with you this

         19  afternoon in this hearing.

         20                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you,

         21  Councilwoman.

         22                 Good afternoon, Chairman Fisher,

         23  Chairwoman Annette Robinson of the Juvenile Justice

         24  Subcommittee and other honorable members of the

         25  Youth Services Committee. I am Commissioner Tino
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          2  Hernandez of the New York City Department of

          3  Juvenile Justice.

          4                 On my immediate right is Al Reno, who

          5  is Deputy Commissioner of Detention and Operations

          6  for the Agency. On his immediate right is Leslie

          7  Hurdle, who is the Assistant Commissioner for

          8  Planning. On my left is Deputy Commissioner Doug

          9  Appel, for Administration for the Department of

         10  Juvenile Justice.

         11                 The focus of this hearing is the

         12  impact of the Fiscal 2000 January Financial Plan in

         13  the Department of Juvenile Justice's budget.

         14                 Since I testified before you only two

         15  weeks ago in the Department's plan to renovate and

         16  reopen the Spofford building, I will focus today on

         17  other components of DJJ's section of the Mayor's

         18  Preliminary Budget.

         19                 I would also like to take this

         20  opportunity to inform the Committee about some of

         21  the managerial improvements and service enhancements

         22  made by the Department over the past year.

         23                 The Preliminary Budget of DJJ for

         24  Fiscal Year 2000 is $96.4 million, over half of

         25  which will be allocated to the New York State Office
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          2  of Children and Family Services to cover

          3  reimbursement payments.

          4                 Any budget discussion must be placed

          5  into the context of DJJ's overall mission and

          6  operation, safe detention of juveniles.

          7                 Excluding the OCFS allocation,

          8  approximately 90 percent of the Department's

          9  operating budget is dedicated to detention services.

         10                 While the January Financial Plan

         11  reflects some difficult decisions, it never the less

         12  provides sufficient funding for the agency's primary

         13  role.

         14                 Additionally DJJ's budget is driven

         15  by the size of our detention population and state

         16  mandates. Through January of 1999, the average daily

         17  population in detention increased by ten percent

         18  compared to the same period last Fiscal Year. As the

         19  number of juveniles remanded to our custody

         20  increases, so does the Department's need for more

         21  staff program and sleeping space and services.

         22                 During my tenure, DJJ has confronted

         23  many challenges. I have worked diligently to

         24  minimize costs while we have needed to serve more

         25  youth, expand our capacity and adapt to operating
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          2  multiple facilities. I believe that there have been

          3  many budgeted accomplishments for the Department so

          4  far. Based on Fiscal Year '99's modified budget, DJJ

          5  is currently operating within its allocated overtime

          6  budget. Our overtime spending this year exceeds last

          7  year's levels as a result of the growth in the

          8  population and the transition into multiple secure

          9  detention facilities.

         10                 However, the Department has worked

         11  diligently to reverse this overtime trend. In

         12  December and January our overtime spending was below

         13  last year's levels. In fact, we have steadily come

         14  down all year with January's overtime spending being

         15  46 percent below July.

         16                 Let me say that there are instances

         17  where overtime is appropriate. However, our goal is

         18  to monitor and manage overtime spending and ensure

         19  accountability in its use.

         20                 DJJ's recent reduction in spending is

         21  largely attributable to our approach to improving

         22  the way we do this. For example, we have developed

         23  and implemented facility-based staffing plans and an

         24  overtime projection model.

         25                 In addition to the monitoring and
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          2  control mechanisms that we have implemented, DJJ has

          3  also aggressively pursued filling vacancies and

          4  reducing absenteeism, which will enable us to

          5  operate fewer posts on overtime.

          6                 Since July 1998 we have hired 74 new

          7  staff with direct care positions and as a result we

          8  now have a vacancy rate of only one percent in this

          9  area.

         10                 As part of each financial plan, the

         11  Department has worked to develop initiatives that

         12  have saved money. I point to the transfer of the

         13  secure detention's Carter G. Woodson Academy to the

         14  Board of Education as an example where a money

         15  saving initiative also improved services.

         16                 Once again, new management

         17  initiatives will allow us to confidently save

         18  overtime through the implementation of several

         19  proposals, contained in the January Financial Plan.

         20                 Specifically we will implement the

         21  staffing ratio of 12 residents to one juvenile

         22  counselor on the night tour, 11:00 to 7:00 a.m. in

         23  selected secure detention halls. This practice is

         24  consistent with our former night operations at

         25  Spofford.
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          2                 The Preliminary Budget also calls for

          3  a reduction of two vacant positions in NSD, which

          4  will be achieved without impacting operations.

          5                 However, inherent in the budget

          6  process are some difficult decisions. The budget

          7  proposal calls for the elimination of the

          8  City-funded Reduce Children's Violence Program and

          9  the 50 percent reduction in the After Care Program.

         10                 DJJ will ensure that no child who is

         11  currently enrolled in these programs loses any

         12  services.

         13                 The Department has also worked to

         14  identify alternative resources for these programs.

         15                 As you know, in collaboration with

         16  the New York City Housing Authority, DJJ has

         17  received federal funds to implement the RCV model in

         18  three new precincts that will target young people

         19  residing in public housing.

         20                 We have also received the grant to

         21  develop a family strengthening model in our after

         22  care program. This program enhancement will allow

         23  DJJ to provide family interaction skills and

         24  workshops and mediation counseling to after care

         25  clients and their parents.
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          2                 Similarly the Financial Plan does not

          3  include funding for the three ombudsman line that

          4  the Council had added this year. The Department did

          5  not fill these positions in Fiscal Year 1999, partly

          6  due to concerns about the effectiveness of the

          7  ombudsman program under its current structure.

          8                 In addition, I believe that DJJ

          9  undergoes a sufficient amount of monitoring

         10  internally, including the current ombudsman and by

         11  OCFS.

         12                 The January Financial Plan does

         13  including new funding for critical needs in the

         14  Department, we received close to $2 million to cover

         15  the costs in maintaining the three secure detention

         16  facilities. This funding will be used to cover costs

         17  of providing medical services of the three detention

         18  sites instead of one, including an increased number

         19  of psychiatric social workers and medical

         20  supervision hours.

         21                 Money has also been allocated to

         22  enable DJJ to remain in the Vernon C. Bain Center

         23  through September of '99, and then to operate the

         24  Spofford Building as 100-bed temporary intake

         25  facility.
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          2                 The Department resumed responsibility

          3  for the management and maintenance of the Spofford

          4  Building in January, the Financial Plan provides DJJ

          5  with the funding required to cover the associated

          6  costs.

          7                 Also, we received funds to ensure

          8  that all of our computer systems are Y2K compliant.

          9                 Finally, additional funds in Fiscal

         10  Year 1999 were added to our budget so that we may

         11  expand the successful pilot called Project Confirm.

         12  As I have mentioned in past hearings, this program

         13  is a collaboration with the Administration of

         14  Children's Services, Probation and the Vera

         15  Institute that targets foster care use with low

         16  level charges at intake, who were eligible to go

         17  home but remained in detention due to the absence of

         18  a guardian at detention or in court.

         19                 Over the past year the staff at DJJ

         20  have dedicated a great deal of time to improving the

         21  agency's overall performance while adapting to a

         22  changing detention system. The existence of multiple

         23  secure detention facilities for the first time in

         24  New York City, in the expansion of non-secure

         25  detention required that DJJ developed new
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          2  operational practices and procedures, as well as a

          3  new management structure.

          4                 The system expansion has made the

          5  movement of residents between the facilities and to

          6  court more complex. One system enhancement has been

          7  the creation of the Movement and Communications

          8  Control Unit, also known as MCCU, in the Department.

          9  This new unit was established in September '98 and

         10  is responsible for the movement and tracking of

         11  residents throughout detention.

         12                 In addition, DJJ has revamped our

         13  transportation procedures to reflect our current

         14  needs.

         15                 The Department's Management structure

         16  in detention also needed to change. It needed to be

         17  strengthened. Accordingly, during this year I

         18  created an Assistant Commissioner position for

         19  Operations and Detention to directly oversee the

         20  delivery of services in detention and to develop new

         21  systems to help with the transition from Spofford to

         22  our current structure.

         23                 In line with the move from one secure

         24  detention facility to three, the Department now has

         25  an executive director at each site compared to just
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          2  one at Spofford. Other positions have been

          3  instituted to support the effective and efficient

          4  operation of DJJ's detention services, including a

          5  Director of Operations in Crossroads and the Horizon

          6  Juvenile Centers, and a Director of Program Services

          7  for detention and a field coordinator for non-secure

          8  detention.

          9                 In our ongoing efforts to enhance our

         10  quality of care, DJJ is constantly exploring

         11  opportunities to strengthen the services we provide

         12  our population. As I announced two weeks ago at our

         13  last hearing, the Department has developed three

         14  programs in the area of Health, Mental Health and

         15  Family Strengthening that will be funded through

         16  grant funds.

         17                 An RFP for the implementation of

         18  these programs was recently released to 650

         19  organizations through the Mayor's Office of Criminal

         20  Justice Coordinator for a combined budget of

         21  $500,000.

         22                 The RFP also includes community-based

         23  initiatives for court-involved youth that focuses on

         24  Mental Health and substance abuse services. The

         25  Department of Juvenile Justice will be able to
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          2  access these services through referral.

          3                 At this time I would be happy to

          4  answer any questions that the Committee may have.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you

          7  very much, Commissioner Hernandez.

          8                 But of course I am deeply concerned

          9  about the program, the Reduce Children's Violence

         10  Program, as well as the Ombudsman Program that the

         11  Council put money into the budget to fund, and yet

         12  the agency felt it was not necessary to fund it for

         13  whatever reason. And certainly when I speak from

         14  this position, it is not from a position of not

         15  seeing the whole picture. Because when I sit here

         16  and the various agency that was here before, we see

         17  a big picture, and we see a total disregard for many

         18  of the services that the Council initiated to be

         19  able to provide services to our local communities,

         20  and so I just wanted to say that.

         21                 But to get to some of the questions

         22  that we have that we have received from our Finance

         23  staff, let me ask this question:

         24                 How has the Department arrived at a

         25  12 to 1 ratio for a nighttime shift?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: We

          3  requested from OCFS for a variance on that when we

          4  were in Spofford, and were granted that variance.

          5                 We also have a variance with specific

          6  areas for our two new facilities, just on the one

          7  shift. That is the late tour.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Do the floor

          9  plans of the Department, some secure detention

         10  facilities, readily lend themselves to the

         11  implementing this nighttime ratio?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: Yes, that

         13  is correct. The floor plan in the facilities in the

         14  way they are designed permit us to have this type of

         15  ratio. Otherwise we wouldn't have been approved by

         16  OCFS.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Let me ask

         18  you this question: What is the budget and staffing

         19  level for each secure detention facility? And what

         20  will the staffing level be for Spofford?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Each of

         22  our current secure --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Identify

         24  yourself.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Oh, I am
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          2  sorry. I am Douglas Appel, Deputy Commissioner for

          3  Administration here at DJJ.

          4                 Our budget for each of our secure

          5  detention facilities, it is about 250 staff per

          6  facility. That allows us to manage those facilities.

          7                 We currently have about $5 million in

          8  the budget for next year allocated towards either

          9  VCBC or Spofford, depending, you know, on the

         10  configuration.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Now, will

         12  Spofford require that kind of, that level of

         13  staffing?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: It is a

         15  very different facility. First of all, it will have

         16  less beds than the two facilities we operate now at

         17  Crossroads and Horizon. It also is a different kind

         18  of facility, it is a different number of dorms,

         19  different sized dorms. So it is really hard to

         20  compare the two.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Well, let me

         22  ask you this question: You indicated the City

         23  dollars, what about the State dollars? Do you get

         24  state dollars?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Sure. For
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          2  every dollar we spend we get a state dollar.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: You get a

          4  matching dollar?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Yes.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Is the $5

          7  million total between the match and what the City

          8  puts out?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: It

         10  includes what the state would contribute.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: It includes

         12  what the state will contribute.

         13                 It is my understanding that from our

         14  previous hearing, Commissioner, that you indicated

         15  that even though we say that crime has decreased,

         16  that there has been more aggressive efforts, the

         17  young people are being picked up more aggressively I

         18  say, in our communities, and they are finding

         19  themselves in Spofford.

         20                 Could you tell me, and then some of

         21  those should be in non-secure facilities; can you

         22  tell me what are your plans as of today in terms of

         23  establishing more non-secure facilities so that the

         24  children are not housed at Spofford?

         25                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I believe,
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          2  Chairwoman, what I indicated was that we had begun,

          3  I think really with the encouragement of the City

          4  Council to better define the population that was

          5  coming into detention.

          6                 I also would remind you that when I

          7  first arrived at the agency, the non-secure

          8  detention capacity was down by two contracts because

          9  we had not --

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: I remember.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We need two

         12  contracts because of financial irregularities. At

         13  that time I made the decision to expeditiously

         14  replace those two contracts and added a third

         15  contract which puts us in the position really of all

         16  time high in terms of non-secure detention capacity.

         17                 I also made a commitment which I will

         18  reaffirm today, that we are continuing to monitor

         19  the population, better define the population, in

         20  continuing to look at ways that we might be able to

         21  increase our non-secure detention capacity as

         22  appropriate.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: I understand

         24  that the Department has two administrative positions

         25  vacant in non-secure detention facilities for more
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          2  than a year, and the Department plans to eliminate

          3  these positions in Fiscal 2000. Basically it seems

          4  as though there is an anticipated savings of $29,000

          5  in 2000 to be generated by these actions; could you

          6  tell me, what does those positions do?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: I am sorry,

          8  I didn't identify myself before.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Yes.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: Al Reno,

         11  Deputy Commissioner for Operations.

         12                 Actually, those are non-direct child

         13  care positions that we are comfortable with

         14  eliminating. They did not participate in any direct

         15  child care. We have all of the positions that are

         16  currently --

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: But what are

         18  the titles of those persons?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: Offhand

         20  Councilwoman, I don't --

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: I am sorry?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: Offhand I

         23  don't remember the titles exactly.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Would you

         25  please provide that information?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: Sure.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 Now, in terms of the after care

          6  program and the RCV program, it is indicated in your

          7  statement, Commissioner, that you are going to be

          8  seeking private funds to facilitate these programs;

          9  is that correct?

         10                 Have you begun to write the proposal

         11  for that? Or in terms of identifying the agencies

         12  that you will be seeking those funds for?

         13                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I would

         14  preface my response, Chairwoman, by indicating that

         15  it is my obligation as Commissioner to look to see

         16  for ways that we would be able to put the proposal

         17  forth to OMB regarding reductions. And as you know,

         18  we do that on a yearly basis.

         19                 We are somewhat limited in what can

         20  be put forth for reductions because as I indicated

         21  in my testimony, a lot of our resources go towards

         22  detention and are fixed, so there is no possible way

         23  that we can look for reductions in those areas.

         24                 One of the things that I did this

         25  past year was to be able to get money from the New
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          2  York City Housing Authority, drug elimination money,

          3  federal funds, to be able to expand Reduce

          4  Children's Violence.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: You have

          6  that already?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: How much is

          9  that, Commissioner? The drug elimination money?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: It's

         11  $325,000.

         12                 This is in collaboration with the New

         13  York City Housing Authority to introduce RCV to

         14  public housing.

         15                 We are still looking, and I think

         16  that it is incumbent upon me as Commissioner to look

         17  for alternative funding streams, so we are currently

         18  in discussion to see if there are ways that we can

         19  acquire additional resources for both programs.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: In your

         21  remarks as well you indicate that you will be

         22  expanding the program, Brooklyn, Staten Island and

         23  the Bronx; on what basis are you establishing the

         24  expansion?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER HURDLE: I am
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          2  Leslie Hurdle, Assistant Commissioner for Management

          3  Analysis.

          4                 Are you asking, Councilwoman, how we

          5  establish the precincts that --

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Yes, that's

          7  correct. What was the criteria for the establishment

          8  of those particular areas, the boroughs?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER HURDLE: Right.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: And what

         11  precincts as well?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER HURDLE: The

         13  precincts that we are going into are the 43 in the

         14  Soundview Section of the Bronx, the 73 in the

         15  Brownsville Section of Brooklyn and the 120 in the

         16  Port Richmond section of Staten Island. And the

         17  precincts were chosen based upon the numbers of

         18  admits from the community districts. We have looked

         19  at the community districts in the city and we picked

         20  the districts that had the highest number of admits

         21  to detention, and then we looked for the precinct

         22  within those districts that had the highest number

         23  of admits.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Are you

         25  maintaining those that are already existent?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER HURDLE: I am

          3  sorry?

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Are you

          5  maintaining the RCV programs in those that are

          6  currently existing?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER HURDLE: Well,

          8  the budget calls for the elimination of the current

          9  RCV program, so the programs that we will have will

         10  be the new NYCHA sites.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay.

         12                 So they will be through for NYCHA.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER HURDLE: Right,

         14  and let me just finish --

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: But let me

         16  ask you something now. You are going to expand the

         17  program and eliminate it in Fiscal 2000; could you

         18  explain that to me, please? Is it because of these

         19  new dollars? Or what is happening here?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: If I may,

         21  Chairwoman.

         22                 I had in my previous capacity worked

         23  very closely with the New York City Housing

         24  Authority and thought that the RCV program would be

         25  an existing model to replicate within public
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          2  housing.

          3                 Leslie Hurdle has outlined the

          4  criteria, I would add that to the criteria as well

          5  was a discussion as to whether NYCHA thought there

          6  was a need an obviously the Police Department to

          7  make sure that we had precincts that we can

          8  integrate this model in.

          9                 As you know, and as I have indicated

         10  before, we had to make some very difficult choices

         11  in the context of a budget that has very fixed

         12  costs, and we put forth RCV as a proposal for

         13  elimination at this point. And as you know, that has

         14  been subject to negotiations between the Mayor's

         15  Office and the City Council which will culminate in

         16  the adoption of the budget subsequent to that.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON:

         18  Commissioner, in your remarks as well, you talked

         19  about the overtime budget and how you were

         20  attempting to reduce that, and what is your overtime

         21  budget?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Our budget

         23  for this year and actually the same budget for next

         24  year is a little over $3.9 million.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: $3.9
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          2  million. How much has been spent?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: This year

          4  through January I think we spent a little over 2.1.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: 2.1. Has

          6  your absenteeism decreased?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: It stayed

          8  relatively constant, dropped slightly in the past

          9  couple of months. It is just something we just

         10  started to work really hard on, I think we will see

         11  some results next year.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: What do you

         13  think contributed to the high overtime rate?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Well, again,

         15  Chairwoman, I would give you the context of what I

         16  found when I arrived at the Department of Juvenile

         17  Justice. Clearly when I arrived there were a

         18  tremendous number of vacancies in the agency. We

         19  have worked very diligently to fill those jobs, and

         20  as I have indicated in our direct child care titles

         21  we are now at one percent vacancy rate, so we had a

         22  situation in which staff were working doubles and

         23  triples at times.

         24                 And part of what happens is when

         25  people are working extensive hours is that they call
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          2  in sick on occasion. We have been able to fill all

          3  positions just about. We then have gone through a

          4  process of reissuing absentee control policy. We

          5  have developed, as indicated before, staffing plans

          6  for each of the facilities which are on the

          7  management information systems, on a daily basis we

          8  know how many posts need to be filled, we also know

          9  who shows up for work, and where we may have

         10  problems, and we are also -- by and far I would say

         11  that most of our staff are very dedicated people,

         12  but I also recognize that we do have some

         13  problematic employees and part of Al Reno's job and

         14  part of operation's job is to begin to look at

         15  disciplinary process in those instances, which I

         16  think is really the rarity, not the majority of our

         17  staff.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Let me ask

         19  you this question. Were there any abuses of staff to

         20  staff or staff to young people in the facility as a

         21  result of people being overwrought as a result of

         22  working so much overtime? Has that been a problem?

         23  Have we had any instances of that?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: I don't

         25  know of any instances like that that overtime caused
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          2  staff to act inappropriately with children or

          3  amongst each other. We are a very professional

          4  group. As the Commissioner stated, we are a small

          5  group of people that regardless of how pleasant it

          6  is to come to work, they are not going to come to

          7  work, and we are creating an absence control unit

          8  that will identify these people and hopefully either

          9  change their ways or they will be moving on.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: And I would

         11  also indicate that we have, really I think to the

         12  credit of many of the people at this table and the

         13  agency moved mountains to fill all of the vacancies

         14  that we have, which has brought tremendous relief to

         15  our staff.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: So, all of

         17  your vacancies are now filled; is that correct?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Under direct

         19  child care we have I think a one percent vacancy

         20  rate at this point.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: But what we

         23  have instituted is really a recurring process of

         24  being able to keep candidates lined up for positions

         25  in the instance that we have some attrition of
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          2  staff.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay.

          4                 And I am concerned about the

          5  ombudsman position that has not been filled. The

          6  Council had put money into the budget and I

          7  understand that when we spoke with you a couple of

          8  weeks ago you indicated that it was not going to be

          9  filled, and it appears as though we are not going to

         10  have any ombudsman for the facilities; is that

         11  correct?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Chairwoman, I

         13  would say that quite frankly, coming in with

         14  multiple priorities in the agency, the ombudsman

         15  role was not something that I was terribly focused

         16  on until I would say maybe a couple of months ago.

         17                 I have some concerns. My first

         18  concern is that I think that we are an agency that

         19  is overregulated as it is.

         20                 I mean, we have OCFS, we have an

         21  inspector general, we have DOI, we have various

         22  organizations that really protect the rights of our

         23  children.

         24                 Notwithstanding that, I think that I

         25  want to make a commitment to be able to reach out to
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          2  the Chair of the ombudsman review board and to

          3  really begin to start a constructive dialogue on how

          4  we can make this an effective model for the agency.

          5                 I had been reluctant really, you know

          6  we went through the budget negotiations and I have

          7  been very reluctant to really start an interview

          8  process for that, until I have at least some

          9  definitive answer that it remains in the budget. And

         10  as you know, right now it is a proposal.

         11                 In the eventuality that this comes to

         12  fruition, I will make a commitment that we will work

         13  with the ombudsman review board to see how we can

         14  work out a structure that is constructive.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Well, with

         16  the way you are speaking now, Commissioner, had

         17  there been a problem with the ombudsman's office, in

         18  terms of -- I mean, they are there to represent the

         19  children and the community, has there been a

         20  problem?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: Actually we

         22  work very closely with each other and we cooperate

         23  with each other, we have monthly meetings, the

         24  ombudsman herself has a direct line to my office,

         25  she can come and visit any time. She knows what she
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          2  is doing and she does it well. It is difficult for

          3  her -- I will concede that it is difficult for her

          4  to get to all of the facilities because now we went

          5  from one facility to three facilities, and you know,

          6  we hope to, as the Commissioner stated, to look into

          7  that more deeply and satisfy that.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: I would

          9  think that if the Council put money into the budget

         10  to facilitate the ombudsman position being there,

         11  that we would act on that, so that not only the

         12  young people could be represented, but also the

         13  community as well. I would think that the ombudsman

         14  would interact with the community as well.

         15                 If you are in a host community, then

         16  that community needs to have some kind of input, and

         17  I think that is a direct link. You don't have -- do

         18  you have a community affairs person or something

         19  that interacts with the host community? Other than

         20  that, I think the ombudsman serves that role; is

         21  that correct?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I have a

         23  variety of staff that interact with the community,

         24  and it is an expectation that that is created also

         25  for the executive directors of each of the
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          2  facilities. I personally meet with communities

          3  around both facilities on a regular basis.

          4                 And what I was trying to indicate,

          5  Chairwoman, is that this is something that I intend

          6  to focus on personally from this point on, and we

          7  will start a process and make this a constructive

          8  process. I did not mean to comply that we had

          9  difficulties with the ombudsman review board. Al

         10  actually sits on the Board and has a very

         11  constructive relationship.

         12                 I want to understand it better. I

         13  want to have at least some accountability so I am

         14  getting information directly and we are committed to

         15  working to make sure that it is a constructive

         16  process.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Well,

         18  certainly I will be working with you to ensure that

         19  we have, you know, that the ombudsman's role and

         20  position is going to be a productive one for the

         21  benefit of the young people in the community.

         22                 Chairman Fisher.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Let me just pick

         24  up on that point so there is no misunderstanding,

         25  Commissioner.
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          2                 The Council put the money in, there

          3  was some confusion as to what we were buying, but

          4  when the budget deal with the Mayor was wrapped up

          5  at the end of last year, and the confusion was

          6  called to our attention, it was clarified, there is

          7  no misunderstanding about that, and as far as I am

          8  concerned, it is an institutional issue when the

          9  Mayor signed off on our budget proposals, including

         10  the funding for those positions, there was a

         11  commitment there to fill them.

         12                 Number two is, you know, rocket

         13  science, you can't be in two places at once. You now

         14  are operating three facilities, we want to make sure

         15  that there is adequate coverage.

         16                 We appreciate the fact that there

         17  were various bodies that exercise oversight

         18  responsibility including the Council. OCFS doesn't

         19  report to us, that is a state agency, and with all

         20  due respect to the professionals at both DOI and the

         21  Inspector General's Office, they are also within the

         22  ambit of the Mayor and the Administration. The

         23  ombudsperson has a certain level of independence, if

         24  not entirely divorced from the operation of your

         25  Department. We like that, and if there are ways to
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          2  improve how that office can function, we are open to

          3  discussing them with you, but in the meantime you

          4  had basically one person covering one facility, now

          5  you got the same number of people covering three

          6  facilities. We have provided the funds, you provide

          7  the body, we want to make sure that this works. I

          8  don't mean that literally one person is support

          9  staff, et cetera. So, I just wanted to be real clear

         10  on that.

         11                 And the other point that I wanted to

         12  make to you, Commissioner, is that -- and I made

         13  this observation earlier with respect to the

         14  proposed cuts in Youth Services and, you know, some

         15  people believe that these are some type of political

         16  game that we and the Mayor engage in every year and

         17  it is just a ritual and it doesn't have real

         18  consequences for people's lives, but in Fiscal Year

         19  1997 your predecessor proposed the elimination of

         20  the Family Ties Program and it was eliminated. And

         21  now we have, you know, proposals to cut other

         22  programs that the Council believes have some value,

         23  if they don't have value let's restructure them, but

         24  we don't want to be in the situation where the only

         25  services that we are providing to young people is
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          2  meal service behind bars.

          3                 So, I will just ask you to carry that

          4  message back to the Administration, let's not play

          5  games with these kids, they are vulnerable, when

          6  they have already made the wrong choices with their

          7  lives, it is incumbent upon us to make the right

          8  choices for them once they come into the system's

          9  custody.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Mr. Chairman,

         11  if I may, I am in agreement with you regarding the

         12  two preventative programs. As I had indicated while

         13  you were out of the room, I am actively looking for

         14  alternative funding streams to be able to continue

         15  them. I am optimistic that I might be able to work

         16  that out, it would probably take some time to be

         17  able to do that and I will be willing to work with

         18  you on restructuring the programs.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: That's great.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON:

         22  Commissioner, I have a question, and I asked in

         23  regards to the overtime and were there any adverse

         24  actions as a result or problems with injuries or

         25  anything, and you indicated, you know, you talked

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  about how professional staff was. But I understand

          3  that what was driving the absence rate, the sick

          4  leave, was line of duty injuries; could you explain

          5  that to me, please?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: Actually,

          7  some time ago that same question was asked to me and

          8  I happened to have at that time all of the stats in

          9  regard to the on-line duty injuries and there are

         10  very few on-duty injuries. I wish I had those

         11  figures with me again today. I can provide them to

         12  the Council.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: That would

         14  be fine.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RENO: I know

         16  there was some confusion and my memory just escapes

         17  me. But there was back then about on-duty injuries,

         18  there are not as many as perceived.

         19                 I will provide that to the Council,

         20  though.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay, then.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 I would ask that, we have the public

         24  here and I have no further questions, Commissioner,

         25  but I would like to say, as Chairman Fisher has
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          2  said, that we would like the message to go to the

          3  Administration that this is not the only form of

          4  activity that we see for our children to be fed and

          5  housed in jail.

          6                 I think -- and the aggressive police

          7  action, we want to see the expansion and not pulled

          8  out, the RCV program. We need to see Family Ties

          9  back there, and we also need to see an expansion of

         10  the non-secure detention facilities as well.

         11                 Yes, I know that you have done some

         12  work in that area but more of our children need to

         13  be out -- those that are currently in, need to be in

         14  non-secure detention facilities. And so I would ask

         15  that you would leave one of your representatives

         16  that would have the capacity to listen to the

         17  discussion of the public.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you,

         20  Chairwoman. Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay, we are

         22  going to proceed immediately to the public portion

         23  of the hearing.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 4:35 p.m.)

         25
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